Minutes of Meeting COLORADO RIVER BOARD OF CALIFORNIA Wednesday, June 10, 2020

A meeting of the Colorado River Board of California (Board) was held virtually on Wednesday, June 10, 2020, using the Zoom Webinar meeting platform.

Board Members and Alternates Present:

David DeJesus (MWD Alternate) Dana B. Fisher, Jr. (PVID) James Hanks (IID) Jeanine Jones (DWR Designee) Henry Kuiper (Public Member) Jim Madaffer (SDCWA)

Board Members and Alternates Absent:

Evelyn Cortez-Davis (LADWP Alternate) Norma Sierra Galindo (IID Alternate)

Others Present:

Steven Abbott Kara Mathews Brian Alvarez Aaron Mead Robert Cheng Brea Mohamed Michael Coleman Dylan Mohamed Jessica Neuwerth Melissa Baum-Haley Nadia Hardjadinita Demetri Polyzos **Christopher Harris** Angela Rashid **Bill Hasencamp** Ivory Reyburn Joanna Smith Hoff Kelly Rodgers Lynda Lo-Hill Tom Ryan **Tina Shields** Michael Hughes Sarai Jimenez Zach Stevens Lisa Johansen Gary Tavetian Lori Jones **Tiffany Tran Rich Juricich** Margaret Vick Laura Lamdin Jay Weiner Meena Westford Tom Levy Lindia Liu Jerry Zimmerman Henry Martinez

Peter Nelson, Chairman (CVWD) Glen D. Peterson (MWD) David R. Pettijohn (LADWP) John Powell, Jr. (CVWD Alternate) Jack Seiler (PVID Alternate) David Vigil (DFW Alternate) Mark Watton (SDCWA Alternate)

Christopher Hayes (DFW Designee)

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Nelson announced the presence of a quorum and called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD

Chairman Nelson invited members of the audience to address the Board on items on the agenda or matters related to the Board. Hearing none, Chairman Nelson moved to the next item on the agenda.

ADMINISTRATION

Chairman Nelson asked for a motion to approve the May 13, 2020, meeting minutes. Mr. Kuiper moved that the minutes be approved, seconded by Mr. Peterson. By roll-call vote, the minutes were approved. Mr. Pettijohn from the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power abstained.

Chairman Nelson asked for a motion to approve the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget. Mr. Madaffer moved that the budget be approved, seconded by Mr. Kuiper. By roll-call vote, the budget was unanimously approved.

Chairman Nelson asked for a motion to approve the proposal of the Lower Colorado Water Supply Project. Mr. Peterson moved that the proposal be approved, seconded by Mr. Madaffer. By roll-call vote, the proposal was approved. Mr. Vigil from the Department of Fish and Wildlife abstained.

COLORADO RIVER BASIN WATER REPORTS

Colorado River Basin Report

Mr. Juricich reported that as of June 1st, the water level at Lake Powell was 3,605.05 feet with 12.24 million-acre feet (MAF) of storage, or 50% of capacity. The water level at Lake Mead was 1,091.32 with 10.97 of storage, or 42% of capacity. The total system storage was 30.96 MAF, or 52% of capacity, which is about 2.32 MAF more than system storage at this time last year.

Mr. Juricich reported that as of May 18th, the mid-month forecast for the unregulated inflow into Lake Powell for Water Year 2020 was 7.15 MAF, or 66% of normal and the Water Year-2020

forecasted April to July inflow to Lake Powell is 4.40, or 61% of normal. For Water Year-2020, the observed April inflow to Lake Powell was 0.48 MAF, or 45% of normal and the forecasted May inflow to Lake Powell is 1.70 MAF, or 79% of normal. The current Basin snowpack is 54% and precipitation to date is 81%.

Mr. Jurich reported that the precipitation conditions in April and May were very dry throughout the Basin. He noted that as of June 1st, snow conditions in the Upper Basin were much below median, with exception to the Upper Green River and Yampa/White Basins.

Mr. Juricich reported that as of June 4th, the Brock and Senator Wash regulating reservoirs captured 67,770 AF and 34,151 AF, respectively. He also reported that the excess deliveries to Mexico through June 7th, were 47,252 AF, noting that the flows were higher than the excess flows in 2019, which were close to 34,000 AF. Mr. Juricich reported that as of June 1st, the total amount of saline drainage water bypassed to the Cienega de Santa Clara in Mexico was 59,191 AF.

Mr. Harris stated that the increase in excess flows to Mexico is attributed to a few big storms that occurred in February 2020 during a two-week period, impacting water orders. Mr. Harris added that once the water is released from Parker Dam, it is difficult to stop and hold it back. He stated that it is likely that this water would have exceeded the capacity of Senator Wash and Brock Reservoir. Chairman Nelson inquired about how excess flows to Mexico could be captured and possibly stored in a groundwater bank. Mr. Harris stated that the excess water would need to be captured and then routed to a regulating reservoir, where it could be held and moved off-stream if needed. He stated that because we do not know when precipitation events will impact water that has already been ordered and released, it would be difficult to capture the water as it moves down from Hoover Dam. He noted that Reclamation would need to hold back supplies at Mojave or Havasu reservoirs or further downstream, which becomes more challenging. Mr. Harris said that the excess flow that travels through Morelos Dam is utilized by Mexico and is not counted as a treaty delivery credit.

Chairman Nelson inquired whether California could utilize excess water in the Colorado River System, in a similar fashion to Mexico. Mr. Harris reported that Colorado River users in the United States put their water orders in with Reclamation and can change their orders on a weekly basis. He added that if there was a high probability of a rainfall event, and some of the water orders could be cutback, there may be an opportunity to capture some of the excess water and convey it off-stream. However, he added that this scenario would have to be discussed and designed among the water users and Reclamation. Mr. Harris stated that overall, Reclamation does a good job managing the releases down through the Lower Basin facilities and making deliveries to all the users in the U.S. as well as the treaty deliveries to Mexico. He added that these types of precipitation events occur periodically and are more anomalous than not. Mr. Harris reported that over that last 20 years, excess flows to Mexico were relatively high on a routine basis each year, sometimes more than 100,000 or more a year. Mr. Harris added that Reclamation has done a great

job tightening up the system and working with U.S. water users to reduce "Water Ordered but Not Delivered" (WOND), which is reported in the annual Accounting Decree Report.

Responding to a question from Board member Mr. Peterson regarding the regulatory storage in Havasu, Mr. Harris reported that storage in Lake Havasu stays static because it contains water diverted MWD's Colorado River aqueduct and water moving down through the system to Imperial Dam and down to Morelos dam. He added that there is very little freeboard in the Lake Havasu system to capture additional water, noting a similar capacity issue with Lake Mohave. He reported that the contents in both reservoirs do not fluctuate often and remain at a constant elevation month by month. However, Mr. Harris added that there may be an opportunity for a small amount of storage within the Lake Havasu system.

Chairman Nelson reiterated that Southern California received significant rainstorms in February, noting that Thermal received 178% of normal rainfall this year. Mr. Zimmerman added that Reclamation makes releases from Havasu to supply the Yuma area, Imperial Irrigation District, Coachella Valley Water District, and deliveries to Mexico. He stated that in large rainstorms water orders have already been released and are already in the river system. Mr. Harris added that Reclamation also works closely with Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) to put together 24-Hour generation schedules at Davis and Parker Dam regarding contract rate of delivery that they have with customers in WAPA's service area. Mr. Harris thanked everyone for their comments regarding this issue and stated that these topics comes up periodically with Reclamation about how they can continue to fine tune and improve operating efficiencies and conservation of water supplies as they are released from Hoover Dam.

Mr. Fisher remarked that Reclamation's work to maintain Senator Wash and State funding for the construction of Drop 2, have saved an immense amount of water annually. He noted that ten years ago, Mexico received in excess 100,000 AF to 150,000 AF in some years.

State and Local Report

Ms. Jones, representing the California Department of Water Resources (DWR), reported that precipitation conditions throughout California have been much below normal with exception to the Southeastern California desert region. She noted that region benefited from two late spring storms. She added that the northern part of the State is significantly drier than average and in May, the remaining snowpack melted due to increasing temperatures. Ms. Jones reported that wildfire season has already started in Northern California, now that precipitation conditions are drying up and temperatures are increasing.

Ms. Jones reported that the White House Office of Science and Technology Policy has announced that their research funding priority for Fiscal Year 2021 will focus on Earth System Predictability, such as the predictability of rainfall. She noted that last week, the National Academy of Sciences held a large workshop on this subject. She added that they have been collecting input on this subject through a Request for Information (RFI) to the science community. The National Academy of Sciences will be using the information they gather to inform their research budget for the next federal fiscal year. Ms. Jones added that we should all encourage and support their efforts to better precipitation predictions and manage the system.

Mr. Peterson, representing the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), reported that the State Water Project (SWP) increased its allocation to 20% this month, up from its previous 15% allocation. He stated that the Colorado River Aqueduct will be operated at a seven-pump flow on the river and will remain that way throughout the year. Responding to a question from Mr. Harris regarding the decline in water deliveries and sales, Mr. Peterson reported that sales have declined a bit and they are predicting 1.65 MAF of water sales this year. He added that the decline of sales in February, March and April are due to above average precipitation. Mr. Peterson added that sewage in residential communities has increased significantly because more people are staying home.

Mr. Pettijohn, representing the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP), reported that to date, precipitation conditions in the Eastern Sierra were below average, but added that they were able to get a decent amount of water out of the LA aqueduct system.

<u>Special Presentation: Status Report on MWD's Update to its Integrated Resource Plan, Mr.</u> <u>Demetri Polyzos</u>

Mr. Demetri Polyzos provided an update on MWD's Update to its Integrated Resource Plan (IRP). Mr. Polyzos began his presentation providing an overview of MWD's service area and its mission to providing reliable, high quality water in an environmentally and economically responsible way. Mr. Polyzos explained that at the turn of the century, the city of Los Angeles identified the need to augment local supplies with imported supplies to satisfy the needs of the growing city. He stated Metropolitan was formed in the 1920s with the objective to secure water rights and build the Colorado River Aqueduct. In the 1960s, MWD contracted with the State for the newly constructed California Aqueduct. Mr. Polyzos reported that from 1987 to 1992, California experienced an unprecedented drought that made it clear to MWD that they could not rely solely on imported water supplies to meet present and future needs. Mr. Polyzos stated that at this moment, MWD became more than a water importer, but the planner for the region's water supply reliability, leading to the development of the Integrated Water Resources Plan (IRP).

Mr. Polyzos explained that the IRP is a long-term strategy that adapts to changing conditions and focuses on diversifying its resource portfolio. During the last IRP, in 2015, MWD set a goal to manage Colorado River supplies to protect and maintain base water supply while also being able to develop the capacity to fill the Colorado River Aqueduct during dry years. He stated

that the 2015 IRP set a target to provide a minimum supply of 900,000 AF, which is about 75% of the water MWD diverted prior to 2003.

Mr. Polyzos stated that the IRPs also consider local resources and partnerships with its member agencies in supporting local resource projects such as recycling, groundwater, and storm water capture. MWD has supported over 112 local projects, providing nearly \$680 million in incentives, and developing nearly 400 MAF of water to date, reducing the need to import additional supplies. The IRP also examines water use efficiency projects and supports these projects through rebates, incentives, and outreach. Mr. Polyzos noted that because of water efficiency projects, MWD's service area has been able to grow while keeping demand relatively flat. Mr. Polyzos noted that per capita water use in MWD's service area has also declined more than what was predicted in the 2015 IRP and more than mandated by former Governor Brown's twenty-five percent cutback in 2015 during the last drought.

Mr. Polyzos reported that the IRPs also led to investments in storage, increasing the storage capacity of its system by thirteen-fold since the 1980. MWD has more water in storage now than at any time in history. In 2019, MWD ended the year with roughly 3.1 MAF of dry year storage, on top of its 720,000 AF of emergency storage. Mr. Polyzos noted that the water is stored in various locations from Hoover Dam, to underground with their partners in San Joaquin Valley, to regional reservoirs in Riverside County. He added that MWD has been able to store significant amounts of water in Hoover Dam and in 2019, it stored roughly 370,000 AF and projects to store about 130,000 AF in 2020.

Mr. Polyzos reported that the IRP sets a planning horizon for twenty-five years and is updated every five years. He explained that the IRP has helped the region face and meet the challenges of the last twenty-five years that included cutbacks on the Colorado River in 2003, State Water Project restrictions in 2008 and 2009, droughts in 2014 and 2015, as well as economic downturns.

Mr. Polyzos explained that past IRPs took a deterministic approach, essentially generating a single "best path" for forecasting supplies and demands, but MWD intends to use a scenario planning approach for the 2020 IRP, which will explore multiple, plausible futures. He stated that the first step of this approach is identifying drivers of change, which are uncertainties that can shape the future. Next, those drivers will be used to construct scenarios. In the third step, MWD will figure out what action will be needed to create a reliable water supply in each of those futures. The final step is to create an adaptive management strategy. He explained that adjustments can be made to the plan and appropriate actions taken. He stated that for the past several months, the IRP team has been working with the MWD Board, member agencies and stakeholders in various brain storming activities and discussions to identify drivers of change. He explained that a driver is a factor that has a big impact on those aspects of the systems that matter to an individual or organization, which for MWD, is the water supply-demand balance and water supply reliability. He added to identify a driver it must answer yes to the following questions: (i) Is it impactful to the balance of supply and demand; (ii) Is it impactful to institutional sustainability and integrity; and (iii) Is it largely outside of MWD's control. He stated that an example of a driver related to the Colorado River is cooperation among Colorado River agencies, explaining that with the 2007 Interim Guidelines set to expire in 2026, the management of future Colorado River conditions are uncertain for all and can have a significant impact to water supply. He added that finding replacement water, should MWD lose supply, could be costly and although MWD can work to negotiate under the best intentions, the Colorado River agencies all have different needs and face unique challenges. It is not certain what the outcome will be, and it is largely outside of MWD's control. Mr. Polyzos concluded his presentation by presenting a few more examples of drivers that MWD is considering during its IRP process. Mr. Polyzos stated that the process of identifying drivers should be wrapping up in the next few weeks.

Chairman Nelson asked for more clarity regarding MWD's ICS puts and its SWP allocation. Mr. Polyzos confirmed that MWD plans to put 130,000 AF in its Lake Mead ICS account and anticipates that figure may change depending on how water use goes this year. He added that the SWP allocation is 20%, which is roughly 395,000 AF. Mr. Harris inquired about MWD's timeline to complete the IRP. Mr. Polyzos responded that MWD does not have a set end date and that the IRP process it will be iterative and will include both technical analysis and policy discussion with MWD's Board and member agencies. He added that they want to provide enough time for a feedback loop but anticipated that the process will be completed by next year.

Mr. Pettijohn asked for more clarity about the supply-demand gaps that were identified in the 2015 IRP. Mr. Polyzos responded that MWD is currently in the process of collecting data and performing a retrospective of 2015 in order to clarify the supply-demand gap, which they plan to report on in the coming weeks for the IRP committee. Mr. Pettijohn noted it will be important for the Colorado River Board to understand what the gap is and how much of that gap MWD plans on filling with Colorado River water. Mr. Polyzos concurred and noted that the gap identified in 2015 was based on assumptions that assumed one scenario for the future. He noted that during this next round of IRP, there will be several potential futures that will have very different supply-demand gaps associated with each, with some greater than the gap identified in 2015, and some may be lower.

Responding to a question from Mr. Robert Cheng, from Coachella Valley Water District asking for more clarity about the work product that would be developed after the drivers were identified, Mr. Polyzos responded that the drivers will help build or construct the scenarios. He stated that feedback from MWD's Board and member agencies would be used to evaluate the actions and policies that will be needed to satisfy the supply-demand gap and reliability goals. He explained that each plausible future will have different needs and different associated actions, as well as an assessment of the cost to achieve reliability in each of the plausible futures. There will be some futures that will not be costly, and some that will be very costly.

STATUS OF COLORADO RIVER BASIN PROGRAMS

Status of Minute No. 323 Implementation

Mr. Harris reported that the Minute Oversight Group met via webinar on June 3-4 and received reports from each of the other Minute groups. The group also received a report on current hydrology and Mexico's plans for increasing the volume of conserved water supplies in Mexico's Water Reserve in Lake Mead. Mr. Harris also noted that Roberto Salmon, who had served as Mexican CILA Commissioner for eleven years, was asked to step down by the Mexican federal government. Mr. Harris noted that the dedication and collaborative spirit that Mr. Salmon brought to the position were instrumental to the passage of recent Minutes, including 317, 318, 319, and 323. Board Member Fisher remarked that Mr. Salmon was a visionary whose focus on collaboration made him a great partner on the river.

Mr. Harris reported that the efforts of the Projects Work Group, including the completion of the final Minute No. 319 projects, had been affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. CILA, Conagua, and District No. 14 are working to identify potential water conservation and management projects under Minute No. 323.

Mr. Harris reported that the Desalination Work Group had released the draft feasibility assessment for potential desalination opportunities on the Sonoran Gulf of California Coast. The Desalination Work Group will now be turning its attention toward working with the Projects Work Group to evaluate desalination opportunities along the Sonoran and Pacific coasts of Baja. Ultimately, the Minute Oversight Group will evaluate these potential water supply augmentation projects and determine whether they should be pursued.

Mr. Harris reported that the Environmental Work Group had also been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, which presents challenges for creating, maintaining, and monitoring habitat restoration projects in the Colorado River Delta. NGO water acquired through the Delta Trust continues to support habitat areas in the Delta, but the Environmental Work Group expressed concern that no federal water has yet been identified or made available for environmental purposes.

Mr. Harris noted that the Salinity Work Group reported that the real-time salinity monitoring program recently put in place below Imperial Dam is working well and allowing Mexican water users to make on-the-spot decisions regarding water delivery points and blending options.

Finally, Mr. Harris noted that Mexico is completing contracts to dredge the forebay of the Sanchez Mejorada Canal at the Southerly International Boundary, which will allow for increased volumes of water to be delivered there in the future. Additionally, Mexico plans to increase its

storage in Lake Mead by approximately 40,000 AF in 2020, with an overall goal of reaching 200,000 AF of Lake Mead storage.

Status of the Salinity Control Program

Mr. Juricich updated the Board on the status of different activities of the Salinity Control Program. The Paradox Valley Unit (PVU) EIS is currently under confidential review by the cooperating agencies before the draft of the Final EIS becomes available for public review. The cooperating agencies requested Reclamation for a couple of extensions of the review period to end on June 22nd. With this extension, the final EIS would likely be published for public review in August and the Record of Decision would come out closer to October.

Mr. Juricich reported that the Advisory Council, Forum, and Work Group met at the beginning of June via webinars with technical assistance from Board staff Mr. Brian Alvarez and Ms. Sarai Jimenz. During the meeting, the Forum approved the draft 2020 Triennial Review, which sets the salinity standards every three years per the Clean Water Act for below Hoover, below Parker and at Imperial Dam. The draft review will go to the Basin States regulatory agencies for public comments before coming back to the Forum for its final approval. The standards will ultimately be adopted by the Basin States in their regulatory programs.

Mr. Juricich reported that the Forum's finance subcommittee has renewed its efforts to look at the Lower Colorado River Basin Development Fund issue. Currently due to lower hydropower revenues from Hoover, Parker and Davis Dams in the Lower Basin, the forecasted revenues for the Salinity Control Program have not kept up with what the expected Lower Basin cost-share would be. The finance subcommittee is looking at potential options for solving this concern.

Mr. Juricich reported that the Advisory Council recommended approval of two new research projects by U.S. Geological Survey. The first one is looking at long-term salinity trends in the Lower Basin tributaries. The second study is looking at the impact of high intensity storm events on salinity transport in both Upper and Lower Basins of the Colorado River.

On the Paradox Valley Unit (PVU), Mr. Juricich reported that Reclamation restarted the injection well on April 21st but paused the trial injection a couple of weeks ago. Reclamation is doing an independent review of the protocols they currently have in place on seismic activity and well core pressure. It is expected that after this quick review the pilot test would resume at about two-thirds of thirty-two percent of the injection rate before the shutdown, which would be equivalent to 65,000 tons of salt per year. In response to Board member Hanks' question at the previous board meeting, Mr. Juricich reported that Reclamation had previously injected the brine at one hundred percent concentration but believes increasing the concentration would cause problems with the well and the associated transport infrastructure.

Status of Minute 242 Salinity Differential

Mr. Juricich provided an update on the Minute 242 salinity differential. Minute 242, approved in August of 1973, requires the water delivered at Morelos Dam has a salinity of no more than 145 parts per million (ppm) above the water arriving at Imperial Dam. During the Salinity Control Forum's Work Group meeting, Reclamation reported that the water delivered at Morelos Dam is anticipated to be 149 ppm, although Mexico's equivalent calculation came to be 140 ppm, which is below the exceedance criteria. Both Reclamation and IBWC are looking into this issue. Mr. Juricich reported that the cause of exceedance may be due to improved water quality arriving at Imperial Dam. There is also a concern there may be additional salt contributions in the Yuma Area that may be related to the salinity spikes from side inflows from the same area. In response to Chairman Nelson's question, Mr. Juricich said the salinity from the shutdown of the canal to the Cienega de Santa Clara did not contribute to the exceedance at Morelos Dam. Mr. Harris added that the exceedance is most likely due to the delicate balance Reclamation undertakes each year in blending saline drainage from the Wellton-Mohawk Irrigation and Drainage District in the lower Gila as well as from the Yuma Area proper. That saline drainage water is blended with better quality mainstream water before being delivered at Morelos Dam just below the NIB. It is not entirely clear whether the exceedance was solely related to blending or if there are some other complicating factors. Mr. Harris reported that Reclamation is going to initiate some work looking into what is going on in this area, which might also help illuminate the spikes in salinity seen below Parker Dam, especially in the January to March timeframe.

In response to a question from a board member, Mr. Harris stated that the remaining saline drainage goes into the bypass drain and into the Cienega, which is why the discharge to the Cienega is typically 125,000 to 140,000 acre-feet per year. Mr. Harris added that one of the big challenges for Arizona, California, and Reclamation is to try and replace the bypass water through either augmenting with new sources of supply or conserving and reducing the amount of saline drainage. This challenge is part of the rationale for replumbing the Minute 242 well field via the Yuma-Mesa conduit and being able to route pumped water from the well field to the NIB to help augment treaty deliveries. Reclamation is looking at this challenge with a toolbox approach to try and reduce the amount of saline drainage bypassed to the Cienega.

Status of the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Program

Board Staff Ms. Neuwerth reported that the Glen Canyon Dam Adaptive Management Work Group (AMWG) met via webinar on May 20th. The group focused on the draft Triennial Work Plan and Budget for FY21-23, which lays out the monitoring, management, and administrative work done by the program over a three-year period. Ms. Neuwerth reported that program funding was in a state of flux, and the source of funding for program implementation in 2021 and out remains uncertain.

Ms. Neuwerth also reported that macroinvertebrate production flows, or "bug flows" are being conducted at Glen Canyon. These low, steady weekend flows started on May 1st and will continue through August 31st in an effort to boost production of aquatic insects critical for the food web. 2020 will be the third year these flows are conducted, with previous years yielding mixed results. Ms. Neuwerth noted that this flow experiment is relatively low impact and has no effect on monthly or weekly release volumes from Glen Canyon Dam.

Finally, Ms. Neuwerth reported that the Technical Work Group for would meet via webinar on June 16-17 to reach a recommendation on the Triennial Work Plan and Budget for FY21-23.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

Lake Powell Pipeline

Mr. Harris reported that the State of Utah and the Bureau of Reclamation announced that they have published a draft EIS for the proposed Lake Powell Pipeline Project. Mr. Harris encouraged the agencies to have their staff begin to look at the draft EIS. Mr. Harris noted that there is a ninety-day comment period, and that comments are due in early September. Finally, Mr. Harris reported that a final EIS could be issued as early as December 2020 with a record of decision in early 2021.

Washington, D.C. Updates

Mr. Harris reported that Congress began to work on the 2021 appropriations process, including renewal of the Water Resources Development Act; fully fund the Land and Water Conservation Fund; fund deferred maintenance projects across federal lands; and a broad infrastructure bill for transportation. Mr. Harris also reported that Congress is expected to pass a stop-gap spending resolution to keep the government funded past the end of the fiscal-year on September 30th.

Mr. Harris reported that Reclamation announced the availability of funds for communities to apply for drought funding grants. Mr. Harris noted that these grants range between \$300,000 and \$750,000, and that applications are due by July 8th.

Mr. Harris reported that Mr. Chris Beardsley was named Director, Policy and Programs at Reclamation. Mr. Harris also reported that Dr. David Raff was named Reclamation's Chief Engineer on May 28th. Finally, Mr. Harris reported that Reclamation's UC Regional Director, Brent Esplin, had accepted the position of Regional Director for the Missouri Basin and Arkansas-Rio Grande Texas Gulf Regions.

Next Scheduled Board Meeting

Finally, Mr. Harris noted that the next meeting of the Colorado River Board would be held on July 15th and would also be held virtually using the Zoom Webinar meeting platform.

ADJOURNMENT

With no further items to be brought before the Board, Chairman Nelson adjourned the meeting at 11:58 a.m.